

## LCB File No. R042-05

### PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

(This proposed regulation was previously adopted as T041-05)

**NAC 389.027** “High school proficiency examinations” defined. (NRS 385.080) “High school proficiency examinations” means the criterion-referenced examinations that:

1. Are administered to pupils in this state before the completion of grade ~~11~~ **10** pursuant to NRS 389.015~~;~~ and,

*2. Are administered to pupils in this state before the completion of grade 11 pursuant to NRS 389.550; and*

~~2.~~ (3) Pupils must pass to receive a standard high school diploma.

**NAC 389.051** Times for administration; special administration. (NRS 385.080, 389.015, 389.550)

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, the board of trustees of each school district and the governing body of each charter school, respectively, shall administer the examinations required by NRS 389.015 and 389.550 in each public school in that district and each charter school which has the appropriate grades at the following times:

(a) For grades 3 *through 8* ~~and 5~~, criterion-referenced examinations in reading, ~~and~~ mathematics, *and science as provided in NAC 389.061* must be administered ~~[within the period beginning 2 weeks before and ending 2 weeks after the 165th day of instruction for the class that is tested.]~~ *in the spring semester on the dates specified by the department of education.*

(b) For grades 4, ~~8~~ **7** and 10, norm-referenced examinations in reading, language, mathematics and science must be administered ~~[in October]~~ *in the spring semester* on the dates specified by the department of education.

(c) For grades 4 and 8, the examination in writing must be administered *in the spring semester* on the dates specified by the department of education.

(d) For grade 11, the high school proficiency examination in writing must be administered in ~~[February]~~ *November* on the date specified by the department of education.

(e) For grade 12 and for adults, the high school proficiency examination in writing must be administered in:

- (1) February;
- (2) *March or* April;
- (3) The summer months; and
- (4) ~~[October]~~ *November*,

on the respective dates specified by the department of education.

(f) For grade 12 and for adults, the high school proficiency examination in writing may be administered, upon the direction of the department of education, to those pupils who have not yet passed the examination, on a date specified by the department which must be approximately 2 weeks before the date of graduation.

(g) For grade 10, the high school proficiency examinations in reading, mathematics and science must be administered in April on the dates specified by the department of education.

(h) For grade 11, the high school proficiency examinations in reading, mathematics and science must be administered in:

- (1) April; and
- (2) The summer months,

on the respective dates specified by the department of education.

(i) For grade 12 and for adults, the high school proficiency examinations in reading, mathematics and science must be administered in:

- (1) February;
- (2) *March or* April;
- (3) The summer months; and
- (4) November,

on the respective dates specified by the department of education.

(j) For grade 12 and for adults, the high school proficiency examinations in reading, mathematics and science may be administered, upon the direction of the department of education, to those pupils who have not yet passed one or more of those examinations, on the dates specified by the department, which must be approximately 2 weeks before the date of graduation.

~~[NAC 389.052 Determination of whether pupil is exempt from taking examinations. (NRS 385.391) A school shall determine whether a pupil is exempt from taking the examinations administered pursuant to NRS 389.015 in accordance with NAC 389.063, subsection 6 of NRS 389.017 and the current edition of the *Guidelines for the Conduct of the Nevada Proficiency Examination Program* published by the department of education.]~~

**NAC 389.056** Procedures for administration. (NRS 385.080, 389.015, 389.550) Achievement and proficiency examinations must be administered as follows:

1. For grades 4, ~~[8]~~ 7 and 10, the reading, mathematics, language and science norm-referenced examinations must be administered pursuant to the instructions in the current edition of *the administration manual and the test coordinator's manual produced by the norm-referenced testing company adopted by the department of education*. ~~[“Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills, TerraNova, Test Directions for Teachers: Level 14/22,” copyright 1996 by CTB/McGraw Hill. If a pupil with a disability in grade 4, 8 or 10 is required to take the examination, the pupil must be included in the regular administration of the examination if the pupil can be adequately tested under acceptable accommodations as set forth in the current edition of the “Nevada Proficiency Examination Program, TerraNova Grades 4, 8, and 10 Test Coordinator’s Manual,” copyright 1997 by CTB/McGraw Hill.]~~

2. For grades 4 and 8, the examination in writing must be administered pursuant to the instructions in the current edition of “Administration Manual: Nevada Fourth & Eighth Grade Proficiency Examinations in Writing,” adopted by the department of education.

3. For grades 3 and 5, the criterion-referenced examinations required by NRS 389.550 must be administered pursuant to the instructions in the current edition of “*Nevada Criterion Referenced Tests* Administration Manual~~[: Nevada Criterion Referenced Tests at Grades Three and Five]~~,” adopted by the department of education.

4. For grades 10 and above, the high school proficiency examinations must be administered pursuant to the instructions in the current edition of “*Nevada High School Proficiency Examination Administration Manual* [~~Nevada High School Proficiency Examinations in Mathematics, Science, Reading and Writing~~],” adopted by the department of education.

**NAC 389.058** Reporting of results to department of education. (NRS 385.080, 389.015, 389.017, 389.550)

~~[1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, a]~~ A private entity that has contracted with the state board to score the examinations pursuant to NRS 389.015 or 389.550 shall report the results of the examinations in writing to the department of education.

~~[2. The provisions of subsection 1 do not apply to the results of examinations administered to:~~

~~—(a) Pupils whose primary language is not English. The number of such pupils who are examined pursuant to NAC 389.063 must be reported separately by the private entity scoring the examinations based on the answer sheet submitted to the entity by the school district for each pupil examined pursuant to NAC 389.063.~~

~~—(b) Pupils who are enrolled in a program of special education pursuant to NRS 388.440 to 388.520, inclusive, and who are not gifted or talented pupils.]~~

**NAC 389.061** Specific norm-referenced and criterion-referenced examinations required. (NRS 385.080, 389.015, 389.550) ~~[Except as otherwise provided in NAC 389.063, t]~~ *The* following norm-referenced and criterion-referenced examinations must be used as examinations of achievement and proficiency:

1. For grades 3 ~~[and 5]~~, the criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are the Nevada Third ~~[and Fifth]~~ Grade Examinations in Mathematics and Reading prescribed by the department of education for each testing period. Each edition of those examinations ~~[that is used commencing in the spring semester of 2001.]~~ must be based upon the standards of content and performance adopted pursuant to NRS 389.520.

2. For grade 4:

(a) The norm-referenced examinations that must be used are the *subtests comprising the Reading, Language, Mathematics, and Science portions of the norm-referenced test adopted by the department of education* ~~["Reading Composite," "Mathematics Composite," "Language Composite" and "Science" portions of Level 14, Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills, TerraNova Complete Battery Plus]~~.

(b) The criterion-referenced examinations that must be used ~~[is]~~ *are:*

(1) *The Nevada Proficiency Examination in Writing for the Fourth Grade prescribed by the department of education for each testing period* ~~[,]~~ *and*

(2) *The Nevada Fourth Grade Examinations in Mathematics and Reading prescribed by the department of education for each testing period. Each edition of those examinations must be based upon the standards of content and performance adopted pursuant to NRS 389.520.*

3. *For grade 5, the criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are the Nevada Fifth Grade Examinations in Mathematics, Reading, and Science prescribed by the department of education for each testing period. Each edition of those examinations must be based upon the standards of content and performance adopted pursuant to NRS 389.520.*

4. *For grade 6, the criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are the Nevada Sixth Grade Examinations in Mathematics and Reading prescribed by the department of education for each testing period. Each edition of those examinations must be based upon the standards of content and performance adopted pursuant to NRS 389.520.*

5. *For grade 7:*

(a) *The norm-referenced examinations that must be used are the subtests comprising the Reading, Language, Mathematics, and Science portions of the norm-referenced test adopted by the department of education.*

(b) *The criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are the Nevada Seventh Grade Examinations in Mathematics and Reading prescribed by the department of education for each testing period. Each edition of those examinations must be based upon the standards of content and performance adopted pursuant to NRS 389.520.*

~~6~~[3]. *For grade 8*~~[3]~~, *the criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are:*

~~(a) The norm-referenced examinations that must be used are the “Reading Composite,” “Mathematics Composite,” “Language Composite” and “Science” portions of Level 18, Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills, TerraNova Complete Battery Plus.]~~

(a) ~~(b) The criterion-referenced examination that must be used is t~~The Nevada Proficiency Examination in Writing for the Eighth Grade prescribed by the department of education for each testing period~~[3]~~, *and*

(b) *The Nevada Fourth Grade Examinations in Mathematics and Reading prescribed by the department of education for each testing period. Each edition of those examinations must be based upon the standards of content and performance adopted pursuant to NRS 389.520.*

~~7~~[4]. *For grade 10:*~~[3]~~, *the norm-referenced examinations that must be used are the “Reading Composite,” “Mathematics Composite,” “Language Composite” and “Science” portions of Level 20, Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills, TerraNova Complete Battery Plus.]*

(a) *The norm-referenced examinations that must be used are the subtests comprising the Reading, Language, Mathematics, and Science portions of the norm-referenced test adopted by the department of education.*

~~5.~~ *For grade 10,*~~[3]~~ (b) *The criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are:*

(1) ~~(a)~~ The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Reading;

(2) ~~(b)~~ The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Mathematics; and

(3) ~~(c)~~ The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Science (*beginning with the graduating class of 2009*),

prescribed by the department of education for each testing period.

8 ~~6~~[3]. *For grades 11 and above, the criterion-referenced examinations that must be used are:*

(a) The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Reading;

(b) The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Mathematics;

(c) The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Science (*beginning with the graduating class of 2009*); and

(d) The Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Writing for the Eleventh Grade and Above,  
prescribed by the department of education for each testing period.

~~[NAC 389.063 Assessment of proficiency in English of pupils whose primary language is not English. (NRS 385.080, 389.017, 389.550)~~

~~—1. Each school district shall use the “Language Assessment Scales Oral,” copyright 1990 by CTB/McGraw Hill, and the “Language Assessment Scales Reading/Writing,” copyright 1990 by CTB/McGraw Hill, to assess the proficiency in the English language of pupils whose primary language is not English. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 3, the assessment must be used as the examination of achievement and proficiency for such pupils in grades 4, 8 and 10.~~

~~—2. If a pupil in grade 4 is assessed at a level III or above as a result of the oral examination administered pursuant to subsection 1 and at a level II or above as a result of the examination of reading and writing administered pursuant to subsection 1, the pupil must also be required to complete the examinations required by NAC 389.061.~~

~~—3. If a pupil in grade 8 or 10 is assessed at a level III or above as a result of the oral examination administered pursuant to subsection 1, at a level III or above as a result of the reading portion of the examination of reading and writing administered pursuant to subsection 1 and at a level II or above as a result of the writing portion of the examination of reading and writing administered pursuant to subsection 1, the pupil must also be required to complete the examinations required by NAC 389.061.~~

~~—4. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, if a pupil is assessed below a level III on the oral examination administered pursuant to subsection 1, the pupils not required to complete the:~~

~~—(a) Examination of reading and writing prescribed in subsection 1.~~

~~—(b) Examinations required by NAC 389.061.~~

~~—5. If a pupil in grade 3 or 5 is assessed at a level III or above as a result of the oral examination administered pursuant to subsection 1 and at a level II or above as a result of the examination of reading and writing administered pursuant to subsection 1, the pupil must also be required to complete the criterion-referenced examinations for grade 3 or 5, as applicable, required by NAC 389.061. A pupil who does not meet the level prescribed by this subsection may be required to take the appropriate criterion-referenced examination if, in the opinion of the pupil’s teacher, useful information may be acquired concerning the pupil’s academic status in reading or mathematics.]~~

~~[NAC 389.066 Scores indicating failure to demonstrate adequate achievement. (NRS 385.080, 389.015, 389.550) A pupil who earns any of the following scores on the examinations administered pursuant to NRS 389.015 and 389.550 has not demonstrated adequate achievement:~~

~~—1. For grade 4, 8 or 10, a score on the examination in reading, mathematics, language or science at or below the 25th percentile of the national norms for that examination.~~

~~—2. For grade 4, a score on a trait on the examination in writing of below 3 indicates inadequate achievement for that trait only and not for all traits on the examination in writing.~~

~~—3. For grade 3 or 5, a score on the examination in reading or mathematics that is below the category of “meets standard,” as established by the state board of education.~~

~~—4. For grade 8, a score on one or more of the traits that are separately scored on the examination in writing of below 3.]~~

**NAC 389.071** Proficiency examinations in writing: Eleventh grade and above; fourth and eighth grade. (NRS 385.080, ~~389.015~~, **389.550**)

1. Each edition of the Nevada High School Proficiency Examination in Writing for the Eleventh Grade and Above to be used after the fall of 1988 must require pupils to write on two topics to be chosen from the following styles of writing:

- (a) Descriptive or narrative writing;
- (b) Expository writing; or
- (c) Persuasive writing.

2. Each edition of the Nevada Proficiency Examination in Writing for the Fourth and Eighth Grade must require pupils to write on one topic to be chosen from the following styles of writing:

- (a) Descriptive writing;
- (b) Narrative writing;
- (c) Expository writing; or
- (d) Persuasive writing.